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MARSHWOOD; FROM PARK TO FARM

Marshwood park in Carhampton parish was wood pasture in 1279 but was partly cleared for a deer park between 1330 and 1355. A rabbit warren at Marshwood was apparently abandoned. Pasture in the 270-a. park was let from 1360 but by 1456 part was in closes although one was reserved for game. In 1624 one close of arable in the park was called Goose plot. By 1655 the south of Marshwood park was in closes called Parkhearns, possibly hard to cultivate as an adjoining field was known as Breakbums. In 1667 the surviving parkland earned £100 but £25 was spent hedging and guttering and already a dairy had been established at Marshwood and the park had become merely an adjunct to the farm.

In 1712 the Lower Park was let with the farm and the Higher Park was let for £967 10s with the deer which the tenant might dispose of as he pleased except for 20 each of the best pied bucks, coloured bucks and coloured does including a young black and white deer with a white face, and two brace of bucks and one brace of does. Only 80 a. still lay within the park pale 94 a. having been inclosed for agriculture. By the 1750s the deer appear to have been removed and cattle and horses were pastured in what remained of the park. By 1840 the park was all in fields.

MARSHWOOD FARM


Accounts for Marshwood farm in the 1680s show how much labour was employed inside and out. Three indoor servants had their food and board and between £1 10s. and £2 10s, the only woman received £2. That compares favourably with the labourers where the men had 1s a day and the women only half that. Women and girls were employed weeding and women for haymaking although men built the ricks. Boys were paid 1s. a week for keeping rooks away. It is not clear what the dairymaids earned but they were usually quite well paid at this period. The farm was a mixed one with sheep and pigs as well as arable land under wheat but dairying was an important part of the economy. There was enough woodland to provide firewood and bark for sale and relatively recent innovations like clover and lime were in use.

The farm was let for over £160 a year in the 1730s and in the 1740s comprised the mansion house, three courts, two orchards, two gardens and 115 acres in closes including 94 a formerly part of the park, which had been reduced to 80 acres within the pales and 38 a. of arable in the former Dunster demesne fields near Lower Marsh. At 229 a. Marshwood was the largest farm in 1774 and was held by the Withycombe family who had successfully resisted notices to quit in the 1750s. 
The farm continued to grow in size over the ensuing years; in 1822 it was 372 a. and about that time had over 79 acres of arable although part was often under grass, to facilitate the stacking of timber waiting to be shipped off the adjoining beach to Minehead for onward shipment to south Wales and elsewhere. Crops produced in roughly equal quantities were turnips, wheat, barley and peas. By 1910 the farm covered 407 a. It had good ‘3 horse’ arable but the meadow was liable to burn in summer and suffered damage from the sea. There were four good new cottages, three yards with housing for horses, cattle, and calves, fattening pens, stores for meal, chaff and roots, and a barn with overshot waterwheel and mill.

THE HOUSE
There is no record of a house or barton at Marshwood until the very late 14th century. It was probably built as a high status house, possibly for a parker, but and was probably occupied by members of the Luttrell family from the early 15th century, when they may have had an oratory there. In 1544 it was described as being in the park although was outside the later reduced park and in 1568 was called the lodge. The 15th-century house was altered and extended probably c.1569 when house and lands were divided, the hall, parlour, cellar, and buttery with chamber being sublet, and updated in 1621 for Thomas Luttrell and his wife Jane Popham whose arms survive on an overmantel. 
By the mid 17th century there were 15 hearths. Two 17th-century overmantels, featuring Abraham with Isaac and possibly St Stephen, have been set in the porch. Although several Luttrell sons and widows made their home at Marshwood until the death of Jane Luttrell (d. 1668) it was later let as a farmhouse and occupied by prosperous farmers like the Withycombes, Badcocks and Heppers although in 1712 Dorothy Luttrell reserved the right to use one of the front chambers. The long south-facing front range has a two-storey porch and two small back wings, one with attached stair turret. Most internal features were removed in the 19th century.

A visitor in 1905 described the house as follows; ‘a long house facing the farmyard’ with a two-storeyed Elizabethan porch. The sitting room had a ceiling ‘of plaster beams massively moulded forming squares’ only one was said to enclose wooden a beam) and a long low window. The staircase opened from that room and had broad winders round a central newel. One bedroom chimneypiece had strapwork and the Luttrell arms ‘similar to Dodington’ and there were bits of decorative plaster in several rooms although two 17th-century chimney pieces formerly in bedrooms had been fixed on each end of porch one portraying a ploughman tied to a post being pelted by a crowd local while his plough was drawn by dogs towards a baby on ground, the other Abraham and Isaac in 17th-century dress. One upstairs room had a nude figure holding a couple of hounds with stags either side.
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